
SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  
MEETING MINUTES 

Monday August 18, 2025 – 6:30 PM 
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone 

Members Present: 
Dr. Michael Klemens (Chair) 
Cathy Shyer (Vice Chair) 
Bob Riva (Regular Member) 
Dr. Danella Schiffer (Alternate Member) 
Beth Wells (Alternate Member) 
 

Members Absent: 
Martin Whalen (Secretary)  
Allen Cockerline (Regular Member) 
 
Staff Present: 
Abby Conroy (Land Use Director) 
Miles Todaro (Land Use Technical Specialist) 

Brief Items and Announcements 1 

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum 2 

Chair Klemens called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. Chair Klemens and Regular Member Riva were 3 

present and seated to vote. Alternate Member Schiffer was also present and seated to vote.  4 

 5 

2. Approval of the Agenda 6 

 7 

Motion: To approve the agenda. 8 

Made by Riva, seconded by Schiffer 9 

Vote: 3-0-0 10 

 11 

3. Minutes of July 7, 2025  12 

Vice Chair Shyer joined the meeting at 6:31pm and was seated to vote. 13 

The Commission discussed potential amendments to the minutes. Vice Chair Shyer abstained from 14 

voting as she was not present for the entire meeting of July 7, 2025. Alternate Member Wells joined 15 

the meeting at 6:33pm and was seated to vote. 16 

 17 

Motion: To approve the minutes of July 7, 2025.  18 

Made by Riva, seconded by Schiffer 19 

Vote: 4-0-1, with Shyer abstaining. 20 

 21 

4. Minutes of July 21, 2025 – pending 22 

5. Minutes of August 4, 2025 – pending 23 

6. Minutes of August 5, 2025 – pending 24 

7. Minutes of August 12, 2025 – pending 25 

8. Minutes of August 14, 2025 – pending 26 

 27 

9. Public Comment: Public Comment is restricted to items that are neither on the agenda nor the 28 

subject of any pending Planning & Zoning Commission application or action and are limited to three 29 

minutes per person. 30 

 31 
There was no public comment. 32 

 33 

Public Hearing – 6:45 PM 34 

10. #2025-0295 / 235 Belgo Road, LLC / 235 Belgo Road / Vertical Expansion of a Nonconforming 35 

Barn Proposed for Conversion to Single Family Residence (Section 503.2) / Map 9 / Lot 9 / 36 

DOR:07/21/2025 / Open Hearing, Possible Consideration 37 



Regular Member Riva read the call to open the public hearing at 6:36 pm. Ben Palmer, the homeowner, 38 

representing 235 Belgo Road LLC, presented the application. Mr. Palmer explained that two dormers 39 

are proposed on the east and west sides of the existing nonconforming barn. He clarified that the 40 

overall height and footprint of the building will remain unchanged. Chair Klemens noted that 41 

Torrington Area Health District (TAHD) and Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Commission approvals 42 

have been received. Mr. Palmer presented the architectural drawings showing the plans for the 43 

dormers. Chair Klemens asked if this is the only existing structure on the lot. Mr. Palmer confirmed it is. 44 

Alternate Member Schiffer asked for more detail on the driveway. Mr. Palmer explained that there 45 

exists an upper and lower gravel driveway, and that the upper driveway is no longer used. Chair 46 

Klemens opened the hearing to the public at 6:46pm.  47 

 48 

Member of the public Betty Mitchell explained that she is a neighbor uphill of the subject property. She 49 

believed that the new dormer windows would create a glare visible from her property, and hoped the 50 

Applicant could mitigate that possibility. Mr. Palmer said he could talk to the architect, and asked Ms. 51 

Mitchell specifically which windows she was referring to. Ms. Mitchell clarified it would be the 52 

windows on the east side of the structure. Chair Klemens asked for the distance between Ms. 53 

Mitchell’s house and the barn at 235 Belgo Road. LUD Conroy demonstrated by measuring in GIS that 54 

the two structures are roughly 1,000 feet apart. Mr. Palmer noted that they will plant trees to block 55 

Ms. Mitchell’s view of the barn and ensure no glare. 56 

 57 

Chair Klemens asked if Ms. Mitchell had any other questions. Ms. Mitchell commented that she had 58 

heard 235 Belgo Road had a “major environmental problem” due to a previous owner. She asked if this 59 

issued was remediated and cited her concern for impacts to a large wetland downstream on the other 60 

side of Belgo Road. Mr. Palmer confirmed the issue had been resolved. Chair Klemens asked if there 61 

was documentation of the clean-up that could be provided. LUD Conroy commented that she believes 62 

TAHD would have confirmed that environmental standards were met to issue the approval that 235 63 

Belgo Road received. 64 

 65 

Chair Klemens asked the Commission if they would like to keep the public hearing open to obtain the 66 

remediation documents from TAHD. Vice Chair Shyer preferred to keep the hearing open. Regular 67 

Member Riva asked if there was any proposed work in the area of the remediation. Mr. Palmer 68 

clarified that only the well is planned for that area, and it has been tested and proven clean. Regular 69 

Member Riva preferred to keep the hearing open to see the remediation documentation. Alternate 70 

Member Schiffer asked if this documentation is a necessary requirement of the Special Permit 71 

application. Chair Klemens explained that the application is for a habitable structure, and the Planning 72 

and Zoning Commission is charged with protecting the health and welfare of the public. Alternate 73 

Member Schiffer agreed with keeping the hearing open based on Chair Klemens’ explanation. 74 

Alternate Member Wells also agreed. 75 

 76 

LUD Conroy asked the Commission to clarify what specific documentation they are looking for. Chair 77 

Klemens asked to see a letter from TAHD and documentation from the demolition of the older 78 

buildings on the lot. Mr. Palmer showed the Commission a 2021 letter he received from TAHD that 79 

addressed the contamination. Based upon the receipt of this letter, Chair Klemens asked if the 80 

Commission wishes to act on the application at this meeting,  making the submission of additional 81 

documents a condition of approval. Vice Chair Shyer and Alternate Member Wells agreed. A motion 82 

was made to close the hearing at 7:13pm. 83 



 84 

Motion: To close the public hearing for application #2025-0295 / 235 Belgo Road, LLC / 235 Belgo Road 85 

/ Vertical Expansion of a Nonconforming Barn Proposed for Conversion to Single Family Residence 86 

(Section 503.2) / Map 9 / Lot 9 / 87 

Made by Riva, seconded by Schiffer 88 

Vote: 5-0-0 89 

 90 

Motion: To approve application #2025-0295 / 235 Belgo Road, LLC / 235 Belgo Road / Vertical 91 

Expansion of a Nonconforming Barn Proposed for Conversion to Single Family Residence (Section 92 

503.2) / Map 9 / Lot 9 / with the condition that the documentation concerning the remediation of the 93 

property shall be provided to the Land Use Office. 94 

Made by Riva, seconded by Schiffer 95 

Vote: 5-0-0 96 

 97 

Other Business 98 

11. Discussion of Comprehensive Zoning Regulations Updates (Conroy and Klemens) – Phase 1 99 

Definitions, Tables of Dimensional Requirements, and Table of Structures and Features, as well as 100 

Miscellaneous Text Changes Reflecting Revised Definitions 101 

 102 

LUD Conroy led the discussion of the work she and Chair Klemens have been conducting, explaining 103 

that Litchfield’s Zoning Regulations have “Zone Profile Pages” putting all the information the public 104 

generally looks for in one place for each zone. She showed the Commission these pages in Litchfield’s 105 

Zoning Regulations, noting that additional information about the specific uses can be found on the 106 

following pages. 107 

 108 

LUD Conroy next showed the existing Salisbury Regulations, and pointed out the organizational 109 

deficiencies present when compared, for example, to Litchfield’s regulations. Vice Chair Shyer 110 

commented that Salisbury’s last comprehensive rewrite of the Zoning Regulations was over 10 years 111 

ago and that there was no red-lined version provided to aid the Commission in understanding the 112 

changes. LUD Conroy noted that showing changes to language with redlining can be difficult when 113 

whole sections are also being rearranged. To accommodate that, she explained that she plans on first 114 

providing an overview of the goals of the proposed regulation changes, then at a future meeting 115 

provide details on language changes. Regular Member Riva supported redesigning the regulations to 116 

make them more intuitive and easier to use.  117 

 118 

LUD Conroy explained that one of the proposed changes will be simplifying the introductory section. 119 

She also proposed eliminating most of Article X (ten), which Planning and Zoning Commission Attorney 120 

Andres has informed her is no longer pertinent. Regular Member Riva commented that the current 121 

Regulations have a lot of gray areas that he would like to see clarified with more detail. LUD Conroy 122 

answered that providing that clarity now is the goal, but more complex topics will be saved for a future 123 

phase of the regulation rewrites. She added that there are a number of redundancies that should be 124 

eliminated, such as various Sections restating the standards in Section 800. Vice Chair Shyer asked if 125 

the Regulations will become shorter. Chair Klemens confirmed they would. LUD Conroy noted that 126 

broader changes are planned for discussion during phase two of the regulation rewrites. Chair Klemens 127 

added that phase one is more about improving the structure of the Regulations, and directed attention 128 



to the proposed changes to the Table of Dimensional Requirements. LUD Conroy pointed out that very 129 

little of the content is proposed to be changed, instead the structure is being rearranged. 130 

 131 

Chair Klemens asked if the Land Use Office will be building the Salisbury Zone Profile pages. LUD 132 

Conroy confirmed that the Land Use Office will begin building the profiles since the Commission 133 

supports this format.  134 

 135 

Tabled Business 136 

12. #2025-0287 / Wake Robin LLC & Ms. Serena Granbery (ARADEV LLC) / 104 & 106 Sharon Road 137 

& 53 Wells Hill Road / Special Permit for Hotel, Redevelopment of the Wake Robin Inn (Section 138 

213.5) / Map 47/ Lot 2 & 2-1 / DOR: 05/05/2025 / OH 08/05/2025 / 139 

 140 

Adjournment 141 

 142 

Motion: To adjourn the meeting at 7:46pm. 143 

Made by Shyer, seconded by Riva.  144 

Vote: 5-0-0 145 

 146 

Respectfully Submitted, 147 

Miles Todaro 148 

Land Use Technical Specialist 149 


